HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 11 November 2021

Present

Councillor Crellin (Chairman)

Councillors Branson, Howard, Hughes, Lowe, Patrick and Linger (Standing Deputy)

Other Councillors Present:

Councillor(s): Councillor Keast and Ian Robinson

45 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Weeks.

46 Minutes

The Minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held on 17 May, 3 June, 24 June, 12 August and 9 September 2021 were agreed as correct records and signed by the Chairman.

47 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Hughes advised that although he was a member of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue Service, who had objected to application APP/20/00441, he did not consider that this membership was so significant that it would prejudice his

judgement of the public interest and that he therefore, intended to participate in any discussion and vote on this application at the meeting.

The legal advisor to the Committee, advised that, based on the information provided, Councillor Hughes's interest in application APP/20/00441 should not preclude him from taking part in the vote or debate on this application.

48 Matters to be considered for Deferment

There were no matters to be considered for deferment.

48a APP/20/00441 - Land west of, Hulbert Road, Havant

(The site was viewed by the Site Viewing Working Party on 14 October 2021)

Proposal: Outline planning application with all matters reserved except access for the development of up to 100 dwellings and associated improved site access, landscaping, footpaths, SuDS and other associated works on land to the west of Hulbert Road, Havant. The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the Head of Planning to grant permission.

The Committee received the supplementary information, circulated prior to the meeting which:

- (1) included written deputations submitted on by Councillor Keast, the applicant's agent, and on behalf of Havant Friends of the Earth and Havant Climate Alliance;
- (2) gave an update on the policy implications of the Panning Inspector's interim findings on the emerging local plan;
- (3) included revised Appendices C, D and E;
- summarised additional representations received since the agenda was published;
- (5) revised the wording of recommended condition 3; and
- (3) gave responses to the questions raised by the Site Viewing Working Party held on the 14 October.

The Committee was addressed by the following deputees:

- a) Ms Brooks, Havant Friends of the Earth and Havant Climate Alliance, who reiterated the issues set out in the submitted written deputation;
- b) Dr Lyons, the applicant's agent, who supported the application by reiterating the issues raised in his written deputation and emphasised that:
 - (a) the report had accepted that the proposal
 - (b) would not have a significant demonstrable harm, was sustainable development and
 - (c) would deliver social, economic and environmental benefits.

In response to questions from members of the Committee, the deputee advised that:

- A cycleway had only been provided to the south of the south as it was anticipated that a majority of the cyclists would wish to travel in this direction. However, the widening of the footpath to the north could be explored to accommodate a cycleway.
- Landscaping would be determined under the reserved matters application. It was anticipated that the approved landscaping scheme would provide for planting along both sides of the Hulbert Road to the east and the A3m.
- Although it was not possible to retain the oak tree on the southern boundary of the site, more trees would be planted as part of the landscaping scheme.
- The proposal would provide the following benefits:
 - (i) Additional housing;

- (ii) A safe pedestrian route from the ASDA roundabout to Dunsbury Park with an additional cycleway from the ASDA roundabout to the site; and
- (iii) CIL funding, which the Council could use to provide community facilities
- It was appreciated that there were few residents nearby. However, this degree of isolation made it a good site for housing development.
- It was considered that the site was in a highly sustainable location
- The mix of housing would be determined at the reserved matters application
- c) Councillor Keast, who reiterated the issues raised in his written deputation and emphasised that if the existing habitat of the dormice was destroyed, the dormice would not survive.

In response to the issues raised in the written deputations and deputations made at the meeting, the officers advised that:

Noise Impact

- the Environmental Health Officers had, at the request of the Site Viewing Working Party, inspected their complaints records and had not found any sequence of complaints relating to noise generated by traffic from residents of similar sites within the Borough where the development was located close to major roads
- It was proposed to create a physical barrier on the application site to reduce the impact of noise generated by adjoining roads

Trees, Bats and Dormice

• The Council's Ecology consultant would seek to ensure that appropriate compensation habitat would be provided in the available areas on the site.

Local Plan Matters

• Drew the members attention to the Interim Findings of the Inspector on the Local Plan and its impact on the status of the plan

In response to questions from the Committee, officers advised that:

- It was proposed to provide a crossing to Dunsbury Park, as part of the Dunsbury Park development
- The cycleway would connect with the highway network at the ASDA roundabout.

- The Education Authority had advised that a contribution towards education was not required for this proposal and this decision would not be reviewed at the reserved matters stage
- The Highways Authority was satisfied that a footway/cycleway be provided to the south of the development and a footway to the north
- The Committee was required to determine the application as submitted. However, it could request the Highway Authority to reconsider providing a footway/cycleway to the north of the site

The Committee discussed the application in detail together with the views raised by deputees.

During the debate, it was acknowledged that there was a need for homes and that pressure had put on the Council to deliver housing.

During the debate concerns were raised: about the safety of the access; that the traffic likely to be generated by this development would exacerbate the existing problems associated with the Hulbert Road to the detriment of the other users of this highway; and on the impact of noise from the major roads adjoining this development.

However, the majority of the Committee considered that:

- (i) the proposal would introduce a footway and or cycleway linking the ASDA roundabout with Dunsbury Park;
- the proposed access was acceptable due to the existing speed limit on the Hulbert Road and the measures introduced at the ASDA roundabout to reduce the speed of traffic on this and other feeder roads; and
- (iii) the proposed conditions addressed the concerns raised.

The Committee was reminded that apart from the access arrangements all other matters were reserved.

RESOLVED that application APP/20/00441 be granted permission subject to:

- (A) The completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and Country Planning Acts, to secure the matters as set out in paragraph 7.167 above; and
- (B) The following conditions (subject to such changes and /or additions that the Head of Planning considers necessary to impose prior to the issuing of the decision):

General

- 1 Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than the expiration of two years beginning with the date of this permission and the development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following dates:
 - (a) The expiration of two years from the date of this permission; or
 - (b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters, or in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The approval of the Local Planning Authority shall be obtained in respect of the following reserved matters before the development first takes place - the appearance; landscaping; layout; and scale.

Reason: The application is granted in outline only under the provisions of Article 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and details of the matters referred to in the condition have not been submitted for consideration.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and documents:

Plans

Site Location Plan 11/10/21 Proposed Site Access Drawing No. A096474-SK01 Rev C Proposed footway Drawing No. A096474-SK02 Rev C Proposed Site Access Drawing No. A096474-SK01 Rev B Swept Path Analysis Drawing No. A096474-SK04 Rev A Forward visibility Drawing No. A096474-SK05 Rev A Tree Protection Plan 16030-4

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

NB The decision also took account of the following documents and plans:

Concept Masterplan Drawing No. CMP-01 Rev E Application Form Planning Design & Access Statement May 2020 Barrell's Manual for managing trees on development sites. Residential/Dwelling Units - Supplementary information template European Site avoidance and mitigation checklist, email dated 27/5/21 from jamie@meonsprings.com EIA Screening Request Letter 18/5/20 Utilities Plan 25/03/2 Sewer records Southern Water Sewer Map Preliminary Tree Survey Plan 2019 Flood Risk Assessment and Preliminary Drainage Strategy April 2020 Lighting Assessment April 2020 Constraints Plan 26/03/20 Topographical Survey Drawing No. WYG001 A Topographical Survey Drawing No. WYG001-003 Report to Inform Habitats Regulations Assessment Stage 1 and Stage 2 July 2020

Documents

Barrell's Arboricultural assessment & method statement dated 27/5/21 and tree plans. Noise Assessment DEC 2020 Noise response from applicant dated 18/3/21, addendum received June 2021 Air Quality Assessment Oct 2020 Phase 1 Geoenvironmental Assessment Desk Top Study A096474 July 2020 Action Plan Ecological Appraisal Dec 2019 Reptile Report Dec 2019 Bat Activity Surveys Dec 2019 & March 2021 Dormouse Reports Jan 2020 & March 2021 Transport Assessment April 2020 Framework Travel Plan May 2021

4 The building line of the housing development to the west of the site shall be no closer than 37m from the A3(M) kerbside.

Reason: In the interests of the air quality and amenity of future residents having regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM18 of the Havant Borough Local (Allocations) 2014, Policy E23 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 No housing shall exceed two storey in height across the entire site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the residential amenity of housing will not be impacted upon by any external noise levels, having regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM18 of the Havant Borough Local (Allocations) 2014, Policy E22 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

6 Any reserved matters application shall have regard to the Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design principles, with particular reference to:

> The design and layout; The presence of good natural surveillance of the public realm and defensible spaces (especially about the dwellings); Appropriate level of lighting; and Appropriate connectivity and permeability within the development.

Reason: To ensure safe and secure development and contribute to reducing crime and disorder, in accordance with Policy CS8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

7 The development of the site shall provide a range of dwelling types and sizes to meet an identified local housing need, with 35% of the overall housing mix (both market and affordable) to be two bedroom homes, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

> Reason: To meet an identified local housing need having regard to Policy CS9 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy H4 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pre-commencement

8 No development shall take place until details of existing and finished floor and site levels relative to previously agreed offsite datum point(s) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the character and amenities of the area having due regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

9 Prior to any demolition, construction or groundwork commencing on the site the approved tree protective measures, including fencing and ground protection, as shown on the approved Barrell's Arboricultural Assessment & Method Statement dated 27/5/21 and the Tree Protection Plans shall be installed and agreed at a pre-commencement meeting with the Council's Arboricultural Officer and within the fenced area(s), there shall be no excavations, storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles or fires. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the submitted details.

> Reason: To safeguard the continued health and presence of such existing vegetation and trees and to protect the amenities of the locality and having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies E1 and E18 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

10 Prior to the commencement of development activities, a detailed Ecological Mitigation, Compensation and Enhancement Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures shall be in accordance with those detailed within the Ecological Appraisal (WYG, December 2019, the Dormouse Survey report (WYG, March 2021) and the Bat Survey report (WYG, March 2021) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Strategy shall include (but not necessarily be restricted to): details of all habitat and species mitigation measures; details of the location, composition and ongoing management of all compensatory or enhancement habitat and: location, type and number of all bat/bird boxes; details of any lighting used during construction. All ecological compensation/enhancement measures shall be installed in accordance with ecologist's instructions and retained in a location and condition suited to their intended function.

> Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2017, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the NERC Act 2006, National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

11 Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include details of measures to avoid harm to the natural environment, including explicit avoidance and mitigation measures and the roles and responsibilities of those persons responsible for implementing the agreed CEMP. Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

12 Prior to commencement of development, detailed designs of speed reduction measures on Hulbert Road shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority . The agreed reduction measures on Hulbert Road shall be implemented to certificate of completion standard prior to occupation of any part of the development hereby approved.

> Reason: In the interest of highway safety and having regard to Policy DM12 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy IN3 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

13 Prior to the commencement of construction of the proposed bund, geotechnical submissions (in accordance with DMRB Standard CD622) relevant to the construction of the earth bund (as set out in principle in the drawing number SK02 included in the Noise Assessment document dated December 2020) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with Highways England).

> Reason: To mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the A3(M); to ensure that the A3(M) continues to be an effective part of the national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 10 of the Highways Act 1980; to satisfy the reasonable requirements of road safety and in accordance with Policy DM15 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and Policy IN1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 14 No development shall commence until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on the principles within the Flood Risk Assessment ref: WYG Flood Risk & Drainage Assessment (FRDA) (ref. A096474, dated April 2020), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include:
 - a) A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design from that within the approved Flood Risk Assessment.
 - b) Detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and dimensions of drainage features including references to link to the drainage calculations.

- c) Detailed drainage calculations to demonstrate existing runoff rates are not exceeded and there is sufficient attenuation for storm events up to and including 1:100 + climate change.
- d) Evidence that urban creep has been included within the calculations.
- e) Confirmation that sufficient water quality measures have been included to satisfy the methodology in the Ciria SuDS Manual C753.
- f) Exceedance plans demonstrating the flow paths and areas of ponding in the event of blockages or storms exceeding design criteria.

g) Evidence that the existing highway ditch connects to the watercourse and confirmation of ownership and approval to discharge to the ditch or watercourse through third party land.

The development shall thereafter be undertaken in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted and retained in accordance with the agreed specification. No surface water shall be permitted to run off from the development hereby permitted on to the Strategic Road Network or into any drainage system connected to the Strategic Road Network.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and ensure that all such drainage provision is constructed to an appropriate standard and quality and having due regard to policies and proposals CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies IN1 and E20 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework; and

to mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the A3(M) and to ensure that the A3(M) continues to be an effective part of the national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 10 of the Highways Act 1980; to satisfy the reasonable requirements of road safety; and in accordance with Policy DM15 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and Policy IN1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

15 No development hereby permitted shall commence until plans and particulars specifying the layout, depth and capacity of all foul and surface water drains and sewers proposed to serve the same, and details of any other proposed ancillary drainage works/plant (e.g. pumping stations) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the completion of the implementation of all such drainage provision in full accordance with such plans and particulars as are thus approved by the Authority.

> Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and ensure that all such drainage provision is constructed to an appropriate standard and quality and having due regard to policies and proposals CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies E20 and IN1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

16 Prior to development commencing, in the event of piling or other deep foundations for the site using penetrative methods, full details of such piling or penetrative methods shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

> Reason: To ensure that the proposed piling or other deep foundation in soils affected by contamination does not harm groundwater resources. This is in line with Policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E21 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

17 Prior to the commencement of any specific phase of development approved by this planning permission (other than demolition, site clearance, or any other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority), an assessment of the nature and extent of contamination at the site, whether originating from within or outside the curtilage, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

> The assessment may comprise separate reports as appropriate, but shall be undertaken by competent persons, and unless specifically excluded in writing by the Local Planning Authority shall include;

- An intrusive site investigation based on the proposals outlined within the WYG Phase 1 Geoenvironmental Desk Study Report Ref: A096474; to provide sufficient data and information to adequately identify & characterise any physical contamination on or affecting the site, and to inform an appropriate assessment of the risks to all identified receptors.
- The results of an appropriate risk assessment based upon (1), and where unacceptable risks are identified, a Remediation Strategy that includes:
 - · appropriately considered remedial objectives,
 - an appraisal of remedial &/or risk mitigation options, having due regard to sustainability, and;
 - clearly defined proposals for mitigation of the identified risks.
- 3) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate that the works set out any Remediation Strategy required under (2) are complete, identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance of engineered mitigation measures, and arrangements for contingency action.

All elements shall be adhered to unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Contamination may be present at the site as a result of both previous land uses (&/or activities) that could pose a risk to future occupants, controlled waters or ecological receptors. This is in line with Policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E24 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 183 - 185 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

18 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Reason: Contamination may be present at the site that has not been or will not be identified by the site investigations required by the above condition which may be encountered during construction. If allowed to remain at the site, contamination could pose an unacceptable risk to future occupants, controlled waters, &/or to ecological receptors. This is in line with Policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E24 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 174, 183-185 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

19 No development or any related site clearance shall commence until a plan and particulars specifying the provision to be made within the site and/or on other land nearby for the parking (throughout the clearance and construction period) of construction vehicles and of other vehicles delivering/removing materials and other items to/from the development site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, throughout such site clearance and implementation of the development hereby permitted, all such temporary parking provision shall be provided and used only as such.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and in the interests of traffic safety and having due regard to policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies E1 and E22 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

20 A Construction Traffic Management Plan shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with Hampshire County Council Highway Authority) before development commences. This should include construction access, construction traffic routes and their management and control, parking and turning provision to be made on site, measures to prevent mud being deposited on the highway, adequate provision for addressing any abnormal wear and tear to the highway, and a programme for construction.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and in the interests of traffic safety and having due regard to policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies E1 and E22 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

21 No development shall commence unless and until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological assessment in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) that has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in order to recognise, characterise and record any archaeological features and deposits that may exist here. The assessment should initially take the form of trial trenches that are within the footprints of the proposed houses, garages, access roads and service trenches.

> Reason: To assess the extent, nature and date of any archaeological deposits that might be present and the impact of the development upon these heritage assets having due regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM20 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E13 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Above ground

22 Prior to any above ground works details of the lighting proposed to serve the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design of the lighting scheme shall comply with BS 5489-1:2020 and discharge any liabilities attached to that standard. The lighting shall, prior to occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved, be carried out in accordance with the approved details and maintained thereafter.

> Reason: To ensure safe and secure development and contribute to reducing crime and disorder, in accordance with Policy CS8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

23 Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above ground construction works shall take place until samples and / or a full specification of the materials to be used externally on the building(s) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials. Only the materials so approved shall be used, in accordance with any terms of such approval. Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and having due regard to Policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

24 No above ground construction works shall take place unless and until details specifying the Energy Efficiency of the residential development in accordance with Policy E12 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved specification.

Reason: To ensure the energy efficiency of the residential development in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) and Policy E12 of the Pre-Submission Havant Borough Local Plan 2036 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pre-occupation

- 25 Prior to occupation of any residential unit hereby approved, confirmation in writing shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority that:
 - (a) the acoustic mitigation measures employed with regard to the building envelope, including fenestration and ventilation, for all residential units meets BS8223:2014 standards as recommended for indoor ambient noise levels for dwellings, especially in relation to living rooms and bedrooms i.e. during the day (07:00 to 23:00) 35 dB L Aeq,16 hour and at night (23:00 to 07:00) 30 dB L Aeq,8 hour for bedrooms; and
 - (b) in respect of external areas that are used for personal amenity space, such as gardens and patios, noise levels in these areas must not exceed 55 dB LAeq, 16 hour.

Note: To secure compliance with this condition, post validation testing would need to be undertaken by a competent person to determine compliance with the noise impact assessment as provided by WYG Noise assessment, dated December 2020, 4th issue. Such testing shall be achieved using at least 3 sample dwellings, nearest to the measurement positions LT1 & LT2. This must include a top storey apartment or house adjacent the A3M and an apartment or dwelling adjacent the Hulbert Road.

Reason: To ensure the residential amenity of the properties is not impacted upon by any external noise levels, especially traffic noise having regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM18 of the Havant Borough Local (Allocations) 2014, Policy E22 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

26 Prior to occupation, an Overheating Assessment in accordance with CIBSE TM59 (2017) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in respect of any residential properties required to keep windows closed to mitigate noise from road traffic sources (especially overnight), to demonstrate that indoor temperatures would be acceptable in the absence of open windows. Any scheme/s or measures to mitigate overheating shall be included with the Acoustic Design Statement or in the approved plans for the development. The Overheating Assessment shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details, prior to the occupation of any of the properties the subject of the scheme.

> Reason: To ensure that the internal residential amenities are not impacted on by overheating, especially during periods where windows cannot be opened for any reasonable length of time due to external traffic noise levels, and having regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM18 of the Havant Borough Local (Allocations) 2014, Policy E22 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

27 Prior to the first occupation of each building or part of a building or use, a 'Secured by Design' accreditation shall be obtained for such building or part of such building or use and thereafter all features are to be permanently retained, details of which shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

> Reason: To ensure safe and secure development and contribute to reducing crime and disorder, in accordance with Policy CS8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

28 No part of the development shall be first occupied anywhere on the site until the road(s) serving that dwelling have been laid to at least base course.

Reason: To avoid excess soil being deposited on the existing roads and having due regard to policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy IN3 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 29 Prior to the occupation of the development full details of the Electrical Vehicle Charging points shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Charging Points shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of each individual dwelling and retained at all times thereafter.

> Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and Policy IN3 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

30 Details for the long-term maintenance arrangements for the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings.

The submitted details shall include;

- a) Maintenance schedules for each drainage feature type and ownership
- b) Details of protection measure

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and ensure that all such drainage provision is constructed to an appropriate standard and quality and having due regard to Policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policies E20 and IN1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

31 Prior to any phase of development being occupied, and pursuant to Condition 17, a verification report demonstrating the completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to, and verified in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met.

> Reason To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health or the water environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the approved verification plan have been met and that remediation of the site is complete. This is in line with Policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E24 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 174, 183-185 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

32 No part of the development shall be first occupied until details of the type, siting, design and materials to be used in the construction of all means of enclosure including boundaries, screens or retaining walls, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved structures have been erected in accordance with the approved details. The structures shall thereafter be retained.

> Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and future occupiers of the development having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy E1 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

33 Following completion of archaeological fieldwork pursuant to Condition 21 a report will be produced in accordance with an approved programme submitted by the developer and approved in writing by the local planning authority setting out and securing appropriate post-excavation assessment, specialist analysis and reports, publication and public engagement.

> Reason: To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of our past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence from the historic environment and to make this publicly available having due regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM20 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014, Policy E13 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 34 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:
 - A water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the development, and this calculation has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; and
 - b) All measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation have been installed.

Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policies E14, EX1 and E12 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

Post occupancy

35 At all times following occupation of the development hereby approved, all measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation shall be maintained so as to ensure that no more than 110 litres per person per day shall be consumed in the development in perpetuity.

> Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policies E14, EX1 and E12 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

48b APP/21/00605 - Land at Forty Acres Farm, Havant Road, Havant

(The site was viewed by the Site Viewing Working Party on 4 November 2021)

Proposal: Re-plan part of the residential area of the site to facilitate an additional 34 new homes within the development area to create a total 147 dwellings, inclusive of the additional 34 units.

The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the Head of Planning to grant permission.

The Committee received the supplementary information, circulated prior to the meeting which:

- (1) included written deputations submitted on by Mr Giles and by Mr Gateley, for Barratt David Wilson Homes Southampton;
- (2) gave an update on the policy implications of the Panning Inspector's interim findings on the emerging local plan;
- (3) included revised Appendices C, D and E;
- (4) updated the Committee on the responses received from Sothern Water and the Landscape Officer;
- (5) updated the planning considerations set out in the submitted report; and
- (3) amended the recommendation set out in the report.

The Committee was addressed by Mr Gateley, who supported the application by reiterating the issues raised in his written deputation.

In response to questions from members of the Committee, the deputee advised that:

- the proposal was changed to reflect changes in the market and is a closer fit to the Council's policy.
- the density is similar to other areas within the development and made efficient use of the land and considered appropriate.
- It was difficult when redesigning a development to mathematically get the correct number of affordable a housing. A contribution had agreed to make up the difference.
- car parking met the Council's standards without downgrading the quality of the environment
- Indicated the location of the proposed cesspit and advised that this would only be utilised in emergencies

• Tankers would probably be used if the cesspit and pumping station failed

In response to the issues raised in the written deputations and deputations made at the meeting, the officers advised that the:

Foul sewerage

• sewerage system would be adopted and subject to regulations

Density

• the proposed density complied with the emerging local plan

The Committee discussed the application in detail together with the views raised by deputees.

The Committee considered that this scheme would help the Council to deliver its housing supply targets and could find no reasons to justify refusal

RESOLVED that application APP/21/00605 be granted permission subject to:

- (A) a Section 106 Agreement as set out in paragraph 7.100; and
- (B) the following conditions (subject to such changes and/or additions that the Head of Planning considers necessary to impose prior to the issuing of the decision):
 - 1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Planning Application Form CIL Assumption of Liability Form CIL Additional Information Form Planning Design & Access Statement Affordable Housing Statement Statement of Community Involvement Design and access statement Planning statement Heritage statement Air quality Assessment – October 2018 ARCHAEOLOGICAL Written Scheme of Investigation LP3190L-WSI-v1.3 ARCHAEOLOGICAL Desk Based assessment April 2018 Bat report April 2018 **Biodiversity Action Plan** CONTAMINATED LAND REVIEW J16120/db/c08 EARTHWORKS STRATEGY AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT -J16120 October 2019 GROUND INVESTIGATION REPORT J16120/db/c03 Mitigation Area Creation, Management and Monitoring Strategy A108712 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey – April 2018 Report to Inform Habitats Regulations Assessment Stage 1 and Stage 2 – May 2021 Winter Bird Mitigation Strategy April 2018 Noise constraints plan R8192-3 Rev 0 Noise assessment – August 2019 Transport note – Uplift technical note Revised Transport Assessment – June 2019 Travel plan June 2019 Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan Revision 03 25 April 2018 Flood risk assessment – May 2021 TRS/BSO/E4409/17864 Utilities Statement May 2021 AC/BSO/E4519/17867 Architect's Plans Proposed site layout 201 Proposed site layout coloured 202 Proposed residential site layout plan 203 Rev B **Boundary Treatment Plan 204** Affordable layout plan 205 Affordable Cell plan 206 SHARED DRIVEWAYS PLAN 207 Storey height plan 208 Bin and cycle storage plan 209 Chimney location plan 210 Electric vehicle charge plan 211 Materials plan 212 Proposed street scenes 213 Rev:P1 Elevations of dwellings contained within Housetype Booklet -July 2021

Landscape and trees Landscape proposal sheet 1 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 2 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 3 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 4 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 5 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 6 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 7 of 9 Rev: Q Landscape proposal sheet 8 of 9 Rev: Q ARBORICULTURAL ASSESSMENT AND METHOD STATEMENT - 16270-AA4-CA MANUAL FOR MANAGING TREES - V2.1 Tree protection plan 16270-6

Highways, drainage and levels REPLAN REFUSE VEHICLE SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS BSO-E4519-053 B **REPLAN FIRE TENDER SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS BSO-**E4519-054 B **REPLAN HIGHWAY LAYOUT REVIEW BSO-E4519-055 B** REPLAN PEDESTRIAN VISIBILITY SPLAY ANALYSIS BSO-E4519-056 B REPLAN LEVELS STRATEGY BSO-E4519-057 B **REPLAN DRAINAGE STRATEGY BSO-E4519-058 A REPLAN SURFACE WATER CATCHMENT AREAS BSO-**E4519-059 A REPLAN EXCEEDANCE FLOW LAYOUT BSO-E4519-060 A **REPLAN INDICATIVE STREET LIGHTING LAYOUT BSO-**E4519-061 A EXTERNAL LEVELS LAYOUT BSO-E4519-504 Q

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

Landscaping

- 3 Notwithstanding any description of landscaping in the application no above ground construction works shall take place until a further detailed Scheme of Soft and Hard Landscape Works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include:
 - i) Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment,
 - ii) Planting methods, tree pits & guying methods,
 - iii) schedules of plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate,
 - iv) Retained areas of grassland cover, scrub, hedgerow, trees and woodland,
 - v) Manner and treatment of watercourses, ditches and banks,
 - vi) Details of all hard-surfaces, such as paths, access ways, seating areas and parking spaces, including their appearance, depth and permeability,

- vii) Means of enclosure, in particular boundary walls and planting around properties and including their frontages, including any retaining structures, and measures to break up parking area
- viii) The type of street lighting including calculations, contour illumination plans and means to reduce light pollution
- ix) A timetable for implementation of the soft and hard landscaping works.

The scheme of Soft and Hard Landscaping Works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable. Any plant which dies, becomes diseased or is removed within the first five years of planting, shall be replaced with another of similar type and size, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To achieve an appropriate landscaping scheme to integrate the development into the landscape and mitigate any impact upon the amenities of neighbouring properties, and to ensure that the roads, footway, footpath, cycleway, street lighting and surface water drainage are constructed to an appropriate standard to serve the development in accordance with policies DM10, CS12 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy 2011) and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Materials

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in accordance with the Materials plan 212 and the particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 05 March 2020 in respect of Condition 4 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

> Physical samples of bricks, as follows: Sunset Red Multi stock brick (Wienerberger) Pembridge Red Multi stock brick (Wienerberger) Nevada Buff feature brick (Wienerberger) Staffordshire blue feature brick (Wienerberger) Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 15 October 2020 in respect of Condition 5 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

> Landscape and Ecological Management Plan, March 2020 Mitigation Area Creation, Management and Monitoring Strategy and a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (WYG, June 2020)

All mitigation and enhancement features shall be permanently retained and maintained. The development shall be carried in accordance with the approved details

Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2010, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

6 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the approved tree protective measures, including fencing and ground protection, as shown on Barrell Arboricultural assessment and method statement particulars ARBORICULTURAL ASSESSMENT AND METHOD STATEMENT - 16270-AA4-CA, MANUAL FOR MANAGING TREES - V2.1, Tree protection plan 16270-6 shall be installed.

> No arboricultural works shall be carried out to trees other than those specified and in accordance with the submitted Tree Survey. Within the fenced area(s), there shall be no excavations, storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles or fires.

> Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS16, of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 15 October 2020 in respect of Condition 7 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

Updated Mitigation Area Creation, Management and Monitoring Strategy and a Landscape and Ecological

7

Management Plan (WYG, June 2020). All mitigation and enhancement features shall be permanently retained and maintained. The development shall be carried in accordance with the approved details

Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2010, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

8

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 15 October 2020 in respect of Condition 8 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

Construction Traffic & Construction Environmental Management Plan, March 2020 Landscape and Ecological Management Plan, March 2020 Mitigation Area Creation, Management and Monitoring Strategy and a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (WYG, June 2020).

Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2010, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 11 August 2020 in respect of Condition 10 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

Earthworks Strategy and Materials Management Plan, Ref J16120 Issue No 4

Reason: Having due regard to policies DM10 of the of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) [2014], to ensure that deposited soils are suitable for their intended use and that no unacceptable exposures to contaminants may occur.

9

10 Prior to the occupation of any relevant part of the permitted development, a report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the works outlined within the Wilson Bailey 'Contaminated Land Review and Discussion' report Ref J16120/bd/c08 (17/01/2020) & Wilson Bailey Earthworks Strategy Design Statement & MMP Support Document Ref: J16120 (March 2020) have been satisfactorily completed. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the above-referenced documents, and must demonstrate that site acceptance criteria have been met.

Reason: Having due regard to policies DM10 of the of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and DM17 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) [2014], and paragraphs 178-180 of the National Planning Policy Framework; to ensure that deposited soils are suitable for their intended use and that no unacceptable exposures to contaminants may occur.

11 No individual dwelling as being subject to high levels of noise, as indicated on plan SK05 of WYG Noise Assessment dated August 2019, shall be occupied unless and until mitigation has been installed and demonstrated through post validation testing to determine compliance with the noise impact assessment as provided by WYG in the Noise Assessment : August 2019). Such testing can be achieved using sample dwellings, as per the measurement positions.

> This shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This report is to confirm the expected noise levels within the proposed dwellings have been achieved and are in line with those levels laid out in BS8233:2014, and recommended for indoor ambient noise levels for dwellings, especially in relation to living rooms and bedrooms i.e. during the day (07:00 to 23:00) 35 dB L Aeq,16 hour and at night (23:00 to 07:00) 30 dB L Aeq,8 hour for bedrooms. the glazing and ventilation strategy mitigation measures outlined in the WYG Noise Assessment dated August 2019, shall be retained at all times, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

> Reason: To ensure the residential amenity of the property is not impacted upon by any external noise levels and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

12 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 24 July 2020 in respect of Condition 15 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

> Construction Traffic & Construction Environmental Management Plan, February 2020 Plan no. BSO/E4519/475 – Existing Sewer Location and Interaction Plan no. BSO/E4519/477 – Existing Sewer Longsection Plans received 26.6.20 BSO/E4519/475 Existing sewer location and interaction - April 2019 BSO/E4519/477 Section through existing sewer - March 2020)

Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2010, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

13 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 06 April 2020 in respect of Condition 16 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

> Micro Drainage Calculations 16 x plans Plan no. BSO/E4519/017 Rev G – Exceedance Flow Layout Drainage General Arrangement plans Sheets 1-14 of 14 Plan no. BSO/E4519/465 - Drainage General Arrangement Sheet 15 of 15 Owners Manual Relating to Surface Water Drainage Maintenance, BSO/E4519 RCP Flood Risk Assessment, April 2018 (approved by permission APP/18/00450; unaltered) RCP - INFORMATION TO ADDRESS LLFA COMMENTS-1378723.pdf (11/03/2020). Reason: Without the provision of an appropriate surface water connection point the development cannot be appropriated mitigated and having due regard to policies and proposals CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 14 The development permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (dated 20th April 2018) as secured under condition 17 of permission APP/18/04450 and as updated by the Flood Risk assessment (dated May 2021) TRS/BSO/E4409/17864 and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
 - Existing ground levels are to be raised to a minimum of 4.4m above Ordnance Datum (AOD) for the extent indicated on drawing number BSO/E4519/029 B (Appendix G of the FRA).
 - 2. Finished floor levels are set no lower than 4.7m above Ordnance Datum (AOD).

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (dated 20th April 2018) and dated May 2021, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of flood water is provided, to reduce the risk of flooding from blockages to the existing culvert, and to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants. This condition is required in accordance with Section 9 of the Planning Practice Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for Flood Risk and Coastal Change and Policy CS15 Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

Reason: To ensure the residential amenity of the property is not impacted upon by any external noise levels and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 15 No development shall be carried out within 3m of the high pressure gas pipeline and no piling or boreholes within 15m without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Southern Gas Networks. Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and or occupiers of neighbouring property and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011and the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 16 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 06 April 2020 in respect of Condition 21 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

Construction Traffic & Construction Environmental Management Plan, Construction Method Statement - Harbour Place Rev 5'. Received 27/3/20

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and in the interests of traffic safety and having due regard to policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

17 The car parking, servicing and other vehicular access arrangements shown on the approved plans to serve each individual dwelling hereby permitted shall be made fully available for use prior to that dwelling being first brought into use and shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and having due regard to policy DM13 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

18 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the plans and particulars approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice dated 06 April 2020 in respect of Condition 23 of Planning Permission APP/18/00450; viz:

Written scheme of investigation, REf.LP3190L-WSI-v1.3, September 2019

Reason: To assess the extent, nature and date of any archaeological deposits that might be present and the impact of the development upon these heritage assets and having due regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

19 Following completion of archaeological fieldwork a report shall be produced in accordance with an approved programme including where appropriate post-excavation assessment, specialist analysis and reports, publication and public engagement.

Reason: To mitigate the effect of the works associated with the development upon any heritage assets and to ensure that information regarding these heritage assets is preserved by record for future generations and having due regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 20 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:
 - (a) A water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the development, and this calculation has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; and
 - (b) All measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation have been installed.

Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policy E14, EX1 and E12 of the Pre-Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

21 At all times following occupation of the development hereby approved, all measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation shall be maintained so as to ensure that no more than 110 litres per person per day shall be consumed in the development in perpetuity. Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policy E14, EX1 and E12 of the Pre-Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

22 Prior to the occupation of the development full details of the Electrical Vehicle Charging points, as shown on plan Electric vehicle charge plan 211 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include samples, location and / or a full specification of the materials to be used externally on the buildings. Only the materials so approved shall be used, in accordance with any terms of such approval.

Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

23 No dwelling hereby permitted shall be first occupied anywhere on the site until the road(s) serving that dwelling have been laid to at least base course.

Reason: To avoid excess soil being deposited on the existing roads and having due regard to policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

24 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the drainage system in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment ref: TRS/BSO/E4409/17864.

> Any revised details submitted must include a technical summary highlighting any changes, updated detailed drainage drawings and detailed drainage calculations.

Reason: To prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of flood water is provided, to reduce the risk of flooding from blockages to the existing culvert, and to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants. This condition is required in accordance with Section 9 of the Planning Practice Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for Flood Risk and Coastal Change and Policy CS15 Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011.

48c APP/21/00680 - 157-157C London Road, Waterlooville

Proposal: Construction of additional storey over existing store building to create a one-bedroom, one-person flat, storage building to be altered internally to create cycle store.

The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the Head of Planning to grant permission.

RESOLVED that application APP/21/00680 be granted permission subject to the following conditions:

1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Technical note 01 parking review uploaded on the 14.10.2021 C3448-2A Proposed floor plans uploaded on the 24.06.2021 C3448-4 Proposed elevations uploaded on the 24.06.2021 C3448-5 Location plan uploaded on the 24.06.2021 C3448-7 Proposed ground floor plans uploaded on the 24.06.2021 C3448-8 Block plan uploaded on the 24.06.2021 Planning Statement uploaded on the 24.06.2021

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

3 The external materials used shall match, in type, colour and texture, those of the existing building so far as practicable.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the area and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4 The internal cycle storage and car parking arrangements shown on the approved plans to serve the development hereby permitted shall be installed and made fully available for use prior to the development being first brought into use and retained and maintained thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and having due regard to policy DM13 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:

- (a) A water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the development, and this calculation has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; and
- (b) All measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation have been installed.

Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policy E14, EX1 and E12 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

6 At all times following occupation of the development hereby approved, all measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency calculation shall be maintained so as to ensure that no more than 110 litres per person per day shall be consumed in the development in perpetuity.

Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out regarding this planning application. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Council have had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, and Policy E14, EX1 and E12 of the Submission Havant Borough Local Plan.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.54 pm

Chairman